
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 Meeting: Thursday, 24th March, 2022 
     at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 16th December, 2021 
and 3rd February, 2022. 
 

5 - 14 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(ctteadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (01229 876322). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
 
 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Work Programme Update   
 
To consider the reviews undertaken by the Work Groups and 
determine whether further action is required. 
 

15 - 18 

(D) 9.   Final Report of the Scrutiny Work Group - Piel Island   
 
To note the outcome of the review and be satisfied for the review to 
be concluded; and; 
 
To agree that the report be submitted to Executive Committee for 
consideration of the recommendations as set out at 3.11 of the report. 
 

19 - 24 

(D) 10.   Work Programme for 2022/2023   
 
To agree items for the Work Programme for 2022/2023 and their 
order of priority as suggested at 3.4 of the report. 
 

25 - 32 

(R) 11.   Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2021/2022   
 
To approve the Annual Report for 2021/2022 for referral to Full 
Council, subject to any relevant updates following this meeting. 
 

33 - 50 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
Membership of Committee 
 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

Councillors Mcleavy (Chairman) 
Cassidy (Vice-Chair) 
Gawne 
Johnston 
W. McClure 
McEwan 
Morgan 
Preston 
Robson 
C. Thomson 
M. A. Thomson 
Worthington 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 Katie Pepper 

Democratic Services 
Officer 
01229 876314 
kpepper@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Wednesday, 16 March 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
      Meeting: Thursday 16th  December, 2021 
      at 2.00 pm.  (Banqueting Hall). 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors McLeavy (Chairman), Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, 
Gawne, Johnston, McClure, McEwan, Morgan and C. Thomson.  
 
Officers Present:- Sandra Baines (Head of Visitor Economy and Culture), Chris Jones 
(Head of Programme Management and Climate Change), Paula Westwood (Scrutiny 
and Democratic Services Team Leader) and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral 
Services Officer). 
 
30 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Member 
 
An apology for absence had been submitted from Councillor M. A. Thomson. 
 
Councillor Assouad had attended as a substitute for Councillor M. A. Thomson. 
 
31 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 2nd December, 2021 were taken as read and 
confirmed. 
 
32 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
33 – Work Programme Update  
 
The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader reported that Work Groups had 
been established to review the topics identified in the 2021/2022 Work Programme.  Her 
report outlined a summary of the progress made in respect of each topic as follows:-  
 
Flooding on Walney Promenade 
 
At the meeting in October 2021, representatives from United Utilities had addressed the 
Committee and provided an update on the plans being made for the sewer network to 
prevent flooding on Walney Promenade. It was anticipated that the works could be 
completed within a 12-18 month timeframe and United Utilities had confirmed that they 
would be happy to provide regular updates to the Committee as appropriate. 
 
Discretionary Housing Fund and Supported Housing Payments 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



The Work Group had met on 9th November with the Revenues and Benefits Service 
Manager who had provided lots of information to the Group regarding the number of 
people in receipt of discretionary housing and supported housing payments, as well as 
the number of claims and the number of claims refused and for what reason.  The Work 
Group had wished to undertake a ‘Deep Dive’ into the support available to vulnerable 
residents in HMOs and supported housing accommodation, looking at both the needs 
of the residents as well as the financial aspect to the Council.  Councillor Morgan had 
advised that since the Work Group meeting, the Executive Committee had taken up the 
deep dive on their behalf and would provide feedback on progress in due course. 
 
Arrangements for the Management of Piel Island 
 
The Work Group had met with the Director of People and Place on 2nd November.  
Information had been shared regarding activities which had taken place over the 
Summer season, along with lessons learned to enable planning for the future more 
effectively.  A more detailed report from the Director of People and Place had been 
covered under Agenda Item No. 8 (Minute No. 34 refers).  A series of regular meetings 
had been set up for the Work Group to meet with the Director of People and Place 
through to March, 2022. 
 
A number of questions had been raised at the meeting and Councillor McClure, Chair 
of the Work Group, had advised that those would be taken forward to the meeting of the 
Work Group in January. 
 
Memorial Benches 
 
The draft Policy for Memorial Benches had been reviewed at the previous meeting prior 
to being approved at Executive Committee. Executive Committee had agreed at their 
meeting on 10th November, 2021 to adopt the policy with immediate effect.  This review 
had now concluded. 
 
Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 
 
The Work Group had met on 11th November.  Information had been noted including:- 
 

 The number of positive cases had been in slow decline at around 430 cases per 
100,000 population; 

 Copeland had the highest number of cases in the County; 

 Cases remained high in Schools with the infection rate recorded from that cohort 
being twice that of the rest of the population; 

 The vaccination programme including first and second doses, as well as boosters 
and first doses for the 12-15 year old cohort were continuing; 

 There had been vaccine hesitancy amongst the 12-15 year old cohort, which had 
been thought to be from fake news on social media.  Trained professionals 
would be liaising with Schools to provide re-assurance. 

 
The Work Group had raised concerns regarding the wearing of face masks no longer 
being mandatory, especially as Winter was approaching and people would be gathering 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



for festive events in large crowds. The Work Group had agreed to approach the 
Council’s media team to produce a news release encouraging mask wearing at large 
events locally to help to reduce the spread of the virus. 
 
Councillor McEwan, Chair of the Work Group, had advised that the Covid-19 situation 
was rapidly changing as a result of the Omicron variant.  A meeting of the Work Group 
had been scheduled for January.  
 
It had been noted that the vaccination programme would be increased next week with 
full day long clinics being held at three sites across the Borough. 
 
RESOLVED: To note the updates on progress in respect of each of the Work Groups. 
 
34 – Future Management Arrangements of Piel Island  
 
Chris Jones (Head of Programme Management and Climate Change) and Sandra 
Baines (Head of Visitor Economy and Culture) attended the Committee and presented 
the report which had brought forward an update on Piel Island, incorporating work 
undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Working Group and asked Executive 
Committee to consider 
and agree the future management arrangements for Piel Island. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been looking at the arrangements for the 
management of Piel Island as part of their work programme for the year.  The Overview 
and Scrutiny Work Group had concluded that the lessons learned from the previous 
season had been as follows:  
 

 Piel Island was a unique place and any operator needed to appreciate the 
constraints offered by power, weather, access and its location within an area of 
Site of Special Scientific Interest;  

 Visitors to Piel Island were short stay and wanted a basic meal and drink;  

 Camping and paying a small fee was popular; 

 The relationship with the ferry operator and the management arrangements for 
Piel Island was really important;  

 Alternative access arrangements off the Island besides the ferry needed to be in 
place;  

 More outside seating was needed to facilitate visitors;  

 The community ownership of Piel Island and its local appeal and natural habitat 
was really important;  

 Contrary to perception, there had been no incidents of anti-social behaviour 
reported;  

 Any operator needed to manage and maintain the island including maintenance 
of the Ship Inn, grounds maintenance of the surrounding area and management 
of camping and the toilet and shower block (except for external urgent repairs to 
the buildings and jetty maintenance) and its assets to a standard that the Council 
expected;  

 All aspects of the Island except for external urgent repairs to the buildings and 
jetty maintenance would be the responsibility of the operator;  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 Emergency planning for incidents with agencies would be an essential part of 
any future management arrangements;  

 There would be potential for events and Piel Island would be an essential element 
of any destination marketing.  Any operator would need a formal relationship with 
the Council to enable that;  

 Communication regarding Piel Island and whether buildings would be open and 
food and drink would be served would be the responsibility of the operator;  

 Any operator needed experience in operating a licenced premises and with 
access to staff, financial sustainability and be prepared to open for a short period 
of the year whilst retaining responsibility for the premises and the Island all year 
round. 

 
Members of the Work Grouphad considered that an open and transparent procurement 
for a suitably experienced operator should take place.  The lessons learned should 
inform the service specification and that a media campaign could run alongside the 
procurement process to encourage people to register to submit an interest through the 
appropriate channel.  The emphasis would be on a long term 10 year lease with an 
annual review of performance and a rental charge that would be subject to review over 
the time period.  Therefore, the preferred option had been to gain approval from 
Executive Committee to that approach and to advertise the opportunity in January 2022 
for a start date in early March 2022. 
 
RESOLVED:- The Committee considered the report and agreed the following 
recommendations to Executive Committee: 
 
(i) Agree to the proposed management arrangements as set out in the report and 
delegate authority to the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Chair of 
Executive Committee, to undertake the procurement process and award the new 
contract; 
 
(ii) Note their appreciation for the work that Officers put in to getting the Ship Inn ready 
to be re-opened this season at very short notice; 
 
(iii) Note the lessons learned from the partnership approach and thank the Piel Island 
Pub Company for their contribution; and 
 
(iv) Note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Piel Island Work Group will continue 
to receive progress updates. 
 
35 – Review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Planning Process 
 
The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader reported That the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee had the power to review or scrutinise decisions made, or actions 
taken, in accordance with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions.  It also had 
power to make recommendations to the Council or Executive Committee, and to 
consider any matters which affected the Council’s area or its communities. The 
Committee also played an important role in policy development and review. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



As part of these responsibilities, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee set an annual 
Work Programme.  The Work Programme ensured that the Committee was able to focus 
on those areas where it was likely to add the most value.  It could do this through its 
formal meetings, through one-day reviews or through the work of task and finish groups. 
 
The report provided a review to consider the development of future Work Programmes. 
 
Current Work Programmes were formulated by Scrutiny Committee Members.  The four 
year Work Plan was aligned to the period of the administration.  The items for year one 
had been agreed following recommendations from the Corporate Support Manager.  In 
year two the pandemic had taken over, with the only item from the original Work Plan 
being memorial benches.  There had been no process around the ones put forward.  It 
had been suggested that this could be broadened out to include consultation with all 
Councillors, Senior Officers within the Council, Parish and Town Council Clerks and 
partner organisations as well as advertising the consultation on the Council’s website.  
A template had been drafted for consideration to aid prioritisation and selection of 
submissions.  
 
A suggested Work Planning Aid had been attached as an Appendix to the report.. The 
Work Planning Aid would be an effective way of quickly assigning a priority to each of 
the submissions and it was therefore recommended that this be introduced for 
development of future work programmes.  
 
Prioritisation was vital to ensure that there were sufficient resources to allow the work 
programme planning to take place and to ensure that the work programme was 
supported through the year.  A Local Government Information Unit article on “making 
scrutiny count” suggested that “one major scrutiny and perhaps two shorter reviews in 
the course of a year would be realistic”.  
 
If Members agreed the new approach then it was recommended that this be 
implemented for the 2022/23 municipal year with a proposed timetable for development 
of the new work programme as follows:  
 

 Consultation on the 2022/23 programme to begin on 17th January, 2022 and run 
until 11th February, 2022;  

 It was proposed that a meeting between the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and members of the Council’s Senior Management 
Team be arranged for the end of February 2022.  This meeting would allow a 
preliminary prioritisation of submissions to be conducted;  

 It was recommended that the Committee utilised a programme workshop during 
this process to allow discussion of the topics in a more informal setting.  This was 
in line with the suggestions from the Centre for Public Scrutiny and was a 
planning tool commonly used by Scrutiny Committees. Subject to the 
Committee’s approval, a workshop would be arranged during the two weeks prior 
to the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee scheduled on 24th March 
2022. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



It was moved by Councillor McLeavy and seconded by Councillor McEwan that the Work 
Planning Aid be amended to reflect issues of concern to Members.  
 
RESOLVED: To adopt the procedure as set out in the report for future work 
programming, subject to the amendment of the Work Planning Aid to reflect issues of 
concern to Members. 
 
The Meeting Closed At: 2.52 p.m. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



BOROUGH OF BARROW IN FURNESS 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
      Meeting: Thursday 3rd February, 2022 
      at 2.00 pm.  (Banqueting Hall). 
 
PRESENT:- Councillors McLeavy (Chairman), Cassidy (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, 
Gawne, McClure, McEwan, Morgan, Preston and C. Thomson.  
 
Officers Present:- Paula Westwood (Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader) 
and Katie Pepper (Democratic and Electoral Services Officer). 
 
36 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Member 
 
Apologies for absence had been submitted from Councillor M. A. Thomson. 
 
Councillor Assouad had attended as a substitute for Councillor M. A. Thomson. 
 
37 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 16th December, 2022 had been omitted from the 
Agenda pack.  It had been noted that those minutes would be reported to the next 
Committee meeting for approval. 
 
38 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
39 – Budget Proposals 2022-2023 
 
The Director of Resources submitted a detailed report regarding the 2022/2023 budget 
proposals.  She reported that the 2022-2023 General Fund revenue budget was 
proposed as £8,841,970 which included £148,760 for the parish precepts. 
 
The £8,841,970 budget included one-off items that related to the prior year results of 
the Collection Fund for Council Tax and Business Rates; the core funding for the budget 
was £11,181,940. 
 
It had been proposed that the Council Tax be increased by £5 per year at Band D 
(2.04%); 59% of properties were in Band A and that increase would equate to £3.33 for 
the year, 6 pence per week. 
 
RESOLVED: - To note the Budget Proposals 2022-2023 and agree that the following 
recommendations be presented to Executive Committee on 9th February, 2022 for their 
consideration:- 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



 Set the 2022-2023 General Fund revenue budget as £8,841,970 including 
£148,760 for parish precepts; 

 Agree a Council Tax increase of £5 on Band D which is equivalent to 2.04% on 
all Council Tax bands; 

 Approve £16,000 of funding for Cumbria Council for Voluntary Service 
(CVS) for 2022-2023;  

 Agree the total net use of £320,140 of reserves; 

 Note the movement in reserves between financial years related to the precepting 
arrangements for Business Rates of £2,257,900; 

 Note the Council Tax Base at 19,899.25; 

 Note that there are no fee and charges increases proposed; and  

 Approve the inclusion of £817,000 in the Capital Programme as a Leisure Centre 
project line. 

 
40 – Work Programme Update  
 
The Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader reported that Work Groups had 
been established to review the topics identified in the 2021/2022 Work Programme.  Her 
report outlined a summary of the progress made in respect of each topic as follows:-  
 
Flooding on Walney Promenade 
 
At the meeting in October 2021, representatives from United Utilities had addressed the 
Committee and provided an update on the plans being made for the sewer network to 
prevent flooding on Walney Promenade. It was anticipated that the works could be 
completed within a 12-18 month timeframe and United Utilities had confirmed that they 
would be happy to provide regular updates to the Committee as appropriate.  This 
review had therefore been paused for the time being. 
 
The Committee had requested the Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader to 
contact the representatives from Untied Utilities with a view to providing an update at 
the March or May meeting.  
 
Discretionary Housing Fund and Supported Housing Payments 
  
The Work Group had wished to undertake a ‘Deep Dive’ into the support available to 
vulnerable residents in HMOs and supported housing accommodation, looking at both 
the needs of the residents as well as the financial aspect to the Council. 
 
It had been noted at the meeting of the Committee on 16th December, 2021 that the 
Executive Committee had taken up the ‘Deep Dive’ on behalf of the Work Group and 
would provide feedback on progress in due course.  This review had therefore been 
paused for the time being. 
 
The Chair had raised concerns that this review had been taken out of the Committee’s 
hands which they had originally been tasked do to.  In the absence of the Chair of the 
Work Group (Councillor M. A. Thomson), the Committee had requested the Scrutiny 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



and Democratic Services Team Leader to contact the chair of the Executive Committee 
to obtain an update on the issue.  
 
Arrangements for the Management of Piel Island 
 
At the meeting on 16th December, 2021 the Committee had received a detailed report 
from the Director of People and Place regarding the future management arrangements 
of Piel Island.  The Committee had considered the report and agreed a number of 
recommendations to the Executive Committee (Minute No. 34 of the meeting held on 
16th December, 2021 refers). 
 
A number of questions had been raised at the previous Committee meeting and 
Councillor McClure, Chair of the Work Group, had advised that those would be taken 
forward to the meeting of the Work Group in January. 
 
Councillor McClure (Chair of the Work Group) provided the Committee with an update 
stating that at the last Work Group meeting on 25th January, 2022 they had agreed they 
were happy for the review to be concluded.  The Chair had requested Councillor 
McClure to report her recommendations at the next Committee meeting to conclude the 
review.  
 
Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 
 
The Work Group had met on 14th January.  Information had been noted including:- 
 

 Over the Christmas and New Year Period Barrow had recorded the highest rate    
of covid cases per 100,000 population in the country; 

 The number of cases in Cumbria appeared to have peaked and were now 
levelling out;  

 Like the rest of the country, Barrow had seen staffing problems due to the sheer 
number of people off sick isolating;  

 Barrow had a Covid Compliance Team contracted until 31st October, 2022 
comprising of one Covid Compliance Officer plus four Contact Tracers, 
supporting the NHS National Test and Trace by contacting hard-to-reach Covid 
positive people in the local area. The Team were also supporting businesses, 
working on compliance techniques and identifying improvements.  

 Town Hall Staff and Members had received communications strongly 
encouraging them to work from home unless there was a business need to be in 
the building.  

 
The Work Group had agreed to meet monthly for the time being so that if any problems 
arose, they could be picked up quickly and the situation could be reviewed. 
 
Additional Item for Consideration  
 
The Chair advised the Committee that himself and other Members had been made 
aware of ongoing issues in the Crellin Street vicinity emanating from food takeaway 
delivery services and proposed that this be added to the Work Programme.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



 
RESOLVED:- 
 
1. To note the updates on progress in respect of each of the Work Groups; and 
 
2. To agree that a Work Group be established to look into the issues on Crellin Street 

comprising of Cllr McEwan (Chair), Cassidy, Gawne, McClure and M. A. Thomson. 
 
The meeting closed at 2:45 p.m. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday 24 March, 2022 

Work Programme Update 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    All Wards 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 Work Groups have been established to review the topics identified in the 

2021/2022 Work Programme.  A summary of the progress made in respect of each 

topic is detailed below. 

 

2.0    Recommendation  

2.1 Members should consider the reviews undertaken by the Work Groups and 

determine whether further action is required. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Flooding on Walney Promenade 

  

 Members will be aware that in October 2021, representatives from United Utilities 

had addressed the Committee and provided an update on the plans being made 

for the sewer network to prevent flooding on Walney Promenade.  They had 

agreed to provide updates to the Committee as appropriate in the future as works 

progressed. 

 

At the last meeting, the Committee had requested me to make contact with United 

Utilities to establish if they were in a position to provide an update.  United Utilities 

have advised that with the area being a SSSI (Site of Specific Scientific Interest) 

site, they are not able to start the work until permits have been issued from Natural 

England and the Marine Maritime Industry.  They would be in touch once permits 

had been received and works had started, in order to attend the next available 

meeting.   

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



3.2 Discretionary Housing Fund and Supported Housing Payments 

 

 At the last meeting of the Committee the Chair had raised that this review had 

been taken out of the Committee’s hands which they had originally been tasked to 

do.  The Committee had requested that contact be made with the Chair of the 

Executive Committee to obtain an update on the issue.  The review has been 

paused for the time being whilst further discussions take place regarding the scope 

of the review. 

 

 This review had been initiated by Cllr Ann Thomson, Leader of the Council.  

Following the last meeting, I have contacted her to seek clarity on the scope of the 

review.  However, it has since been agreed by the Executive Committee at their 

meeting on 9th March, as part of the Annual Review of the Constitution, to 

recommend the Council to agree that the Leader of the Council should not sit on 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The Committee are therefore requested to 

consider whether they wish to continue the review and if so, the scope of the 

review and expected outcomes will need to be determined. 

 

3.3 Arrangements for the Management of Piel Island 

 

At the last meeting of the Committee, Councillor McClure Chair of the Work Group 

had confirmed that following the meeting of the Work Group on 25th January, 2022 

the Work Group had been satisfied that the review could be concluded.  The Chair 

had requested Councillor McClure to report her recommendations at the next 

Committee meeting to conclude the review.  The final report from the Piel Island 

Work Group is covered under a separate agenda item. 

 

3.4 Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward 

 

 The Work Group had met on 7th February.  Information had been noted including:- 

  

 The number of cases in Cumbria throughout January had reduced, with the 

most significant reduction seen in the second week of January, then a 

steady decline thereafter; 

 The rolling seven day average number of cases in Barrow at the time had 

been around 500 cases per 100,000 population which was similar to the 

other Districts in Cumbria.  It was envisaged that case numbers would likely 

remain at that level as the Omicron variant was highly transmissible; 

 It was anticipated that by the end of March, isolation rules would be lifted, 

although it was envisaged that PCR testing would remain in some form to 

test for new variants; 

 The Council’s Contact Tracing Team continue to assist the NHS Test and 

Trace System by contacting ‘hard to reach’ cases; 

 Covid Marshalls had reduced to one session per fortnight on a Saturday 

morning at the Alfred Barrow Health Centre with around 500 vaccinations 

each session plus walk-ins. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



The Work Group had considered that it would be appropriate to meet again at the 

end of March when it was anticipated that isolation rules would be lifted. 

 

3.5 Crellin Street 

 

 At the previous meeting, the Committee had agreed that a Work Group be 

established to look further into ongoing issues in the Crellin Street vicinity 

emanating from food takeaway delivery services including parking on double 

yellow lines, obstructing delivery wagons and other road users, as well as reports 

of residents feeling intimidated walking past crowds of Uber Eats Drivers.   

 

 Following the initial meeting of the Work Group on 8th February, Members of the 

Work Group had requested for additional representatives to be invited to meet with 

them including Graham Barker (Head of Public Protection, Barrow Borough 

Council), as well as a representative from the Police and Cumbria County Council. 

  

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 A consultation for the 2022/2023 Work Programme concluded on 11th February, 

2022.  Details of the consultation and proposed Work Programme are covered 

under a separate item on the today’s agenda. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Additional information is required before we can consider alternative options. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Scrutiny Work Programme covers all of the Council’s priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 This is an update report and there are no implications at this stage. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  
 

No – This is an update report at there are no implications at this stage. 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A N/A N/A 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

     pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

N/A N/A 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A N/A 

  

Page 18

Agenda Item 8

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday 24 March, 2022 

Final Report of the Scrutiny Work Group – Piel Island 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The report outlines the background and scope of the review into the future 

management arrangements for Piel Island, along with the recommendations and 

conclusions from the Work Group. 

 

2.0    Recommendation  

2.1 (1)  To note the outcome of the review detailed at 3.9, 3.10 and 3.11 of the 

report and that the Scrutiny Work Group were satisfied for the review to be 

concluded; and 

 

(2) To agree that the report be submitted to Executive Committee for 

consideration of the recommendations as set out at 3.11 of the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

 Background 

3.1 Barrow Borough Council are the custodian of Piel Island and until late May 2021, 
the management of Piel Island, including the running of the Ship Inn, maintaining 
the toilet block and the Island grounds was undertaken by the holders of a lease 
from the Council.  The Leaseholders had decided before the end of their lease that 
they wished to terminate the arrangement. 

 
3.2 Ensuring that Piel Island could be shown to its best advantage, the Council needed 

to fully understand its full potential for the future.  To enable to the Ship Inn to re-
open after a period of closure and early termination of the lease had taken 
considerable effort from a team of Council Officers who had volunteered to go over 
to Piel Island and repaint it, organise deep cleaning and deal with a range of other 
issues.  This had been done within a couple of weeks to then enable the Council 
to show prospective interested partners around the premises. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



 
3.3 For the last season and in the light of the impact of Covid, a pilot partnership 

approach had been put in place with a provider to truly understand what the longer-
term management arrangements might look like to make the best of Piel Island for 
all.  The provider was a local company that had experience in running pubs and 
they subsequently established the Piel Island Pub Company.  The arrangement 
had been that it would be from June to September 2021 and be open book 
accounting to understand the cost and income from Piel Island. 

 
 Scope of the Review 
 
3.4 The Work Group wished to ensure that any long-term future management 

arrangements for Piel Island would be considered thoroughly in an open and 
transparent manner to ensure that a suitable and experienced operator would be 
appointed. 

 
 Details of the Review 
 
3.5 Members of the Work Group had visited Piel Island and had attended a number of 

meetings with the Director of People and Place during their review. 
 
3.6 The Work Group had concluded the following lessons learnt from the 2021 

season:-  
 

 Piel Island was a unique place and any operator needed to appreciate the 
constraints offered by power, weather, access and its location within an area 
of Site of Special Scientific Interest; 

 Visitors to Piel Island were short stay and wanted a basic meal and drink; 

 Camping and paying a small fee for that was popular; 

 The relationship with the ferry operator and the management arrangements 
for Piel Island were really important; 

 Alternative access arrangements off the island besides the ferry needed to be 
in place; 

 More outside seating was needed to facilitate visitors; 

 The community ownership of Piel Island and its local appeal and natural 
habitat was really important; 

 There were no incidents of anti-social behaviour reported, which was contrary 
to perception; 

 Any operator needed to manage and maintain the Island and its assets to a 
standard that the Council expects; 

 All aspects of the Island except for external urgent repairs to the buildings and 
jetty maintenance would be the responsibility of the operator; 

 Emergency planning for incidents with agencies was an essential part of any 
future management arrangements; 

 There was potential for events and Piel Island is an essential element of any 
destination marketing.  Any operator would need a formal relationship with the 
Council to enable this; 

 Communications about Piel Island and whether buildings are open and food 
and drink is being served would be the responsibility of the operator; and 

Page 20

Agenda Item 9



 Any operator needed experience in operating a licenced premises and with 
access to staff, financial sustainability and be prepared to open for a short 
period of the year whilst retaining responsibility for the premises and the Island 
all year round. 

 
3.7 At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16th December, 2021 

a detailed report had been presented from the Director of People and Place 
regarding the future management arrangements of Piel Island.  The Committee 
considered the report and agreed a number of recommendations to the Executive 
Committee as follows:- 

 

 Agree to the proposed management arrangements as set out in the report and 
delegate authority to the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the 
Chair of Executive Committee, to undertake the procurement process and 
award the new contract;  

 Note their appreciation for the work that officers put into getting the Ship Inn 
ready to be re-opened this season at very short notice; 

 Note the lessons learnt from the partnership approach and thank the Piel 
Island Pub Company for their contribution; and 

 Note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Piel Island Working Group will 
continue to receive progress updates. 

 
3.8 The Committee had welcomed the plan for the future management arrangements 

of Piel Island but the Work Group needed to understand what had happened in 
the past, in terms of the selection process for the temporary operator for the 2021 
season.  A number of questions in that regard had been raised at the meeting 
which had been taken forward to a meeting of the Work Group in January 2022.    

 
 Conclusion 

 

3.9 Following further discussions with the Director of People and Place at the Work 
Group meeting in January 2022, the Work Group had concluded that they were 
satisfied that due process had been followed to set up the partnership 
arrangements for the 2021 season and that the Officers involved had done a 
fantastic job in the short space of time and other challenges faced, including Covid, 
to get the Island and the Pub up and running for the start of the season and to 
make Piel Island and its facilities available as often as possible for visitors during 
the 2021 season. 

 
3.10 In respect of the long-term future management arrangements for Piel Island, it had 

been noted as per the recommendations to the Executive Committee (detailed at 
3.7), that an open and transparent procurement process had been undertaken to 
award the new contract and the Work Group had welcomed the opportunity for 
them to oversee the Scoring Panel for the Tender submissions. 

 
3.11 The Work Group wished to make the following recommendations to the Executive 

Committee in order to conclude the review:- 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 Clear, concise and agreed requirements to be set for the tenant who is 
selected; 

 A targeted media campaign to be established to find the most suitably 
qualified tenant; 

 Members of the Piel Island Scrutiny Work Group to be given the opportunity 
to oversee the scoring process; 

 Visibility to Members of profit/loss e.g. performance management 
information on a regular basis (3 times annually); 

 All Members to be kept fully updated on activities, performance and issues 
etc encountered by the Council and the Tenant at least twice annually or 
more frequently as necessary; 

 Consideration be given to a Piel Island Member Group. 
 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Members of the Scrutiny Work Group had met with the Director of People and 

Place during the review along with other Officers involved in the Piel Island 2021 

season including the Head of Visitor Economy and Culture and the Head of 

Programme Management and Climate change. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Members of the Work Group had been satisfied with the options for the future 

management arrangements of Piel Island which were considered to be the most 

appropriate at this time. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Creating a vibrant, safe and welcoming place and that our neighbourhoods are 

clean, welcoming and attractive, working towards the outcome of our environment 

is enhanced, protected and celebrated. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no issues to raise in this report. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no issues to raise in this report. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no issues to raise in this report. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this report. 
 
 
 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

N/A N/A N/A 

 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

     pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

N/A N/A 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A N/A 

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 9

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday 24 March, 2022 

Work Programme for 2022/2023 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    All Wards 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 Following the consultation exercise and Work Planning meeting with the Chair and 

Senior Management Team, the Committee are requested to determine relevant 

items for the Work Programme for 2022/2023 from those detailed at 3.4 of the 

report. 

 

2.0   Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree items 

for the Work Programme for 2022/2023 and their order of priority as 

suggested at 3.4 of the report. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

 

3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are responsible for setting their own Work 

Programme.  They are expected to review at least one major policy issue during 

the municipal year and must give serious consideration to the number of issues to 

be reviewed during the year, to ensure that they are able to allocate resources 

sufficient to facilitate a thorough review of the issues selected. 

 

3.2 An efficient and effective Overview and Scrutiny Committee work planning process 

ensures that the maximum value can be made of the Council’s resources and that 

the outcome of the work will be linked to the Council Plan priorities.  To that end, 

the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have adopted the following agreed 

procedure for work programming (Minute No. 35 of 16th December, 2021 refers):- 

 

 Annual public consultation exercise to bring forward potential items for 
consideration; 

Page 25

Agenda Item 10



 Preliminary prioritisation of submissions conducted by the Chair and Vice 
Chair and the Council’s Senior Management Team using the agreed Work 
Planning Aid; 

 A Work Planning Workshop involving the Committee members to allow 
discussion of the topics in an informal setting; and 

 The proposed Work Programme to be agreed by the Committee. 
 
3.3 Submissions for topics had been invited from the public, all Borough Councillors, 

Senior Officers within the Council, Parish and Town Council Clerks and partner 
organisations via a survey link on the Council’s website. 

 
The consultation exercise brought forward two suggestions as follows:- 
 
1)  The Council’s ongoing policy to prevent public access to the Town Hall; and 
2)  Transparency.  

 
Further details are provided at Appendix 1. 
 
The Council’s Senior Management Team had also considered that the following 
policies/strategies should pass through Scrutiny for consideration:- 
 
1) Equality Strategy and Action Plan; 
2) Customer Strategy and Action Plan; 
3) Growing Forward Report and Action Plan; and 
4) Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy. 

  
3.4 The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee met with the Council’s Senior 

Management Team on 23rd February to conduct an initial prioritisation of the topics 
submitted.  It was considered that the two submissions received from the 
consultation exercise could be amalgamated and the aspects of these (including 
public access to the Town Hall, transparency and internal (Member/Officer) and 
external communications) could be considered as part of the review of the 
Customer Strategy and Action Plan. 

 
 It is therefore recommended that the following new items be included in the Work 

Programme for 2022/2023 in the following order of priority:- 
 

 Review of Customer Strategy and Action Plan; 

 Review of the Growing Forward Report and Action Plan; 

 Review of Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy; and 

 Review of Equality Strategy and Action Plan. 
 

3.5 The Committee are requested to note that the following items from the 2021/2022 

Work Programme are still ongoing/paused and will be carried forward into 

2022/2023:- 

 

 Crellin Street (Ongoing) 

 Flooding on Walney Promenade (Paused) 

 Discretionary Housing Payments (Paused) 

Page 26

Agenda Item 10



 Impact of Covid-19 Going Forward (Ongoing) 
 

3.6 The Committee may have the capacity to undertake additional reviews throughout 

the year should the need arise.  Any additional items for consideration will be 

considered in conjunction with the Work Planning Aid agreed by the Committee at 

their meeting on 16th December, 2021 (Minute No. 35 refers) – See Appendix 2. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 In arriving at the list of potential items for inclusion in the Work Programme, a 

public consultation exercise has been undertaken as well as consultation with 

Senior Management Team and Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  It was 

agreed in consultation with the Chair that the proposed Workshop involving all 

Members of the Committee to prioritise the items for the Work Programme would 

not be necessary on this occasion, as only a few items had been suggested for 

consideration. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Committee could choose not to add additional items to the Work Programme 

for 2022/2023 and to focus on those brought forward from 2021/2022 to obtain 

closure prior to the dissolution of Barrow Borough Council on 1st April, 2023. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee should link to all of the priorities 

set out within the Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, or procurement issues arising from this report.  There is a 

need to ensure that there are sufficient resources to allow the agreed Work 

Programme to be supported through the year. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 The Committee needs to be effective in its role.  By preparing a planned Work 

Programme, the Committee can ensure that it has adequate time to properly 

consider those key areas where it can add greatest value.  In turn, this will enable 

the Council to demonstrate that it has effective scrutiny arrangements in place. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 It is important that all of the reviews are concluded during the municipal year as 

under the proposals for Local Government Reorganisation, Barrow Borough 

Council will cease to exist from 1 April, 2023. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  

Page 27

Agenda Item 10



 
No – There are no implications arising from this report. 
 

Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Work Programme does 

not add value. 

Resources not used to 

their maximum. 

Keep under review and 

ensure a planned Work 

Programme that aligns 

with Council Plan 

priorities. 

 

 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

     pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk   

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Consultation Responses on the Overview and Scrutiny Work 

Programme for 2022/2023 

2 Work Planning Aid 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of 

Background 

document  

Where it is available  

Previous Work 

Programme 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda – 3rd June, 2021 

Previous Work 

Programme 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda – 8th July, 2021 

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 10

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=580&Ver=4
https://democracy.barrowbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=686&Ver=4


Consultation Responses on the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2022/2023 
 
1. Suggested Area for Review 

Please enter here, details of the suggested area for review 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 The Council's ongoing policy to prevent public access to the Town 
Hall 
The Council currently appears to have a 'closed door' policy to the 
Town Hall, preventing public access except in limited 
circumstances, on the basis of the perceived threat from Covid-19.  
This will have had an impact on the public's ability to contact the 
Council, it has reduced the transparency of the Council by 
obstructing (if not preventing) public access to meetings and it 
begins to make the Town Hall look like an ivory tower.  The 
Council's policy is entirely at odds with the government guidelines 
and with other public spaces, including the Council's own Dock 
Museum and Forum, which are open for business as normal.  The 
policy should be reconsidered in terms of the actual risks (which 
can be mitigated), current guidelines, the Council's own policy 
with regard to other buildings and the public good. 

2 Transparency 
How transparent the organisation is; in real terms, i.e meaningful, 
including both internal (member/officer) and external 
communication and consultation. 

 
 
2. Which of the Council Plan Priorities does your proposal link to? 

Select more than one if you wish 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 People, Place and Prosperity 

2 People, Place and Prosperity 

 
 
3. How does your proposal link to the Council Plan priorities and targets? 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 The current policy does not seem to align with the Council's 
stated vision/values: 
- To focus on our community and provide excellent service for all 
our customers and colleagues. 
- To demonstrate honesty and integrity by doing the right thing, 
being open and confident to challenge and be challenged. 

2 It is over-arching and feeds into all functions and services. 

 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



4. Does your proposal relate to a current Barrow Borough Council function? 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 Yes 

2 Yes 

 
 
5. What would be the expected outcome of any potential review of this topic? 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 That the Town Hall be re-opened to the public as are all other 
public spaces.  It should be recognised that this is a public building, 
that the Council are public servants, and that the needs of the 
public should be placed above the wishes of the Council.  It should 
also be clear that the threat from Covid-19, with controls in place, 
cannot be shown to be greater than the public benefits of an open 
and accessible Council. 

2 Suggested recommendations and improvement plan. 

 
 
6. Suggested format of review 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 1 Day Review 

2 Committee Meeting Agenda Item 

 
 
7. Would this review need to be conducted at a particular time, for example to link in 

with forthcoming Council or Executive Committee decisions, or with other work 
which is being carried out? 

 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 The policy should be reviewed at the earliest opportunity, given 
that most other Covid-19 restrictions have been removed. It may 
need to be approved by Executive Committee. 

2 No 

 
 
8. Your details can remain anonymous or you can provide your contact details in the 

box below if you wish. 
 

Respondent No. Response Details 

1 Anonymous  

1 Anonymous 

 
 

Page 30

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLANNING AID 

 
 
 
 

Is this issue strategic and/or 
significant?                                                                               

 

 

 
Will scrutiny activity add value to 
the Council’s overall 
performance?                                                                         

 
 

 

 

Will the scrutiny activity lead to 
effective outcomes? 

 
 

 
 

 

Will this duplicate work being 
carried out elsewhere? 

 

 

 
Is this issue of concern to our 
partners, others, Members or 
Council Plan priorities? 

 
 
 

Is this an issue of community or 
Member concern, or concerns 
which link to Council Plan 
priorities? 

 
 

 
Are there adequate resources to 
do this activity well? 

 
 

 
 
Is this scrutiny activity timely? 
 

 
 
 
 
 

High Priority                                       Low Priority                                Reject 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Thursday 24 March, 2022 

Council 

Wednesday 18 May, 2022 

Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

2021/2022 

 
 

Report from:   Democratic Services Manager 

Report Author:  Paula Westwood 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The report presents the Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

for 2021/2022. 

 

2.0    Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee approve the 

Annual Report for 2021/2022 attached at Appendix 1, for referral to Full 

Council, subject to any relevant updates following this meeting. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Article 6.03 (d) – Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s Constitution 

states that the Overview and scrutiny Committee must report annually to Full 

Council on its workings and make recommendations for the future work 

programme and amended working methods if appropriate. 

 

3.2 The Annual Report for 2021/2022 looks back at the work of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee for the previous 12 months, as well as looking ahead into 

2022/2023. 

 

3.3 It is anticipated that, subject to the approval of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, the Annual Report will be presented to Council at its Annual Meeting 

on 18th May, 2022.  As the Work Programme for 2022/2023 is the subject of an 

Page 33

Agenda Item 11



Agenda Item at today’s meeting, details of the Work Programme once agreed will 

be added to the Annual Report prior to its submission to Full Council. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Annual Report has been produced in consultation with the Chair and Vice 

Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required by the Council’s Constitution to 

produce an Annual Report.  Members could choose to amend the content of the 

report prior to its consideration by Council on 18th May, 2022. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee seeks to exercise its function so as to 

consider, challenge and add value to the Council’s approach to delivering the 

priorities and targets set out in the Council Plan 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial or resource implications arising from this report.  The work 

undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee needs to provide value for 

money and make the best use of available resources. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 In order to ensure that the work of the Committee adds value to the work of the  

Council and underpins the Council Plan priorities, it is important that the 

Committee is effective in its role. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no implications on Local Government Reorganisation arising from this 

report. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  
 
No – The report has no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

An Annual Report is not 

produced. 

Failure to maintain 

constitutional 

requirements.  The 

opportunity to consider 

.A comprehensive and 

timely Annual Report is 

produced. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 11



and promote the work 

of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee is 

lost. 

The Overview and Scrutiny 

Work Programme does not 

address the Council’s delivery 

of priorities and targets in the 

Council Plan 

Absence of challenge 

and overview of the 

Council progress in 

meeting the Council’s 

priorities. 

The Annual Report and 

Work Programme are 

utilised to focus the work 

of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Contact Officers  

Paula Westwood Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 

     pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021/2022 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

N/A N/A 

  

Page 35

Agenda Item 11

mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Barrow Borough Council 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 
 2021/2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Date:  March 2022 
 

Author:  Paula Westwood 
 

 

 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 1 of 12 
 

 

 

CONTENTS 
 

 
Introduction…………………………………………………………………………………  2 
 
Chair’s Foreward…………………………………………………………………………..  2 
 
Year in Review: Overview and Scrutiny 2021/2022………………………………….     3-10 
 
Looking Ahead to 2022/2023…………………………………………………………….. 11 
 
Scrutiny Contact Details………………………………………………………………….. 11 
 
Work Planning Aid………...……………………………………………………………….. 12 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 2 of 12 
 

 

Introduction 
 
Welcome to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report for Barrow Borough 
Council.  The report sets out the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee between May 
2021 and April 2022. 
 
The Council has one Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the remit to investigate, 
scrutinise, monitor, oversee and comment on service delivery mechanisms, policy 
implementation, or any other issue affecting the Borough or its residents, provided that they 
have previously been considered by either the Executive Committee or Council.   
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the power to review or scrutinise decisions made, 
or actions taken, in accordance with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions.  It also 
has the power to make recommendations to the Council or Executive Committee, and to 
consider any matters which affect the Council’s area or its communities.  The Committee also 
plays an important role in policy development and review and by providing input during the 
early stages of policy development, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can add real value 
before a final decision is made. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny is a key tool for promoting the best interests and wellbeing of the area 
and seeks to ensure that local people receive high quality services that meet their needs.  
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee does this by acting as a ‘critical friend’ to the 
Executive Committee, holding it to account and providing challenge where necessary. 
 
 
Chair’s Foreward 
 
I would like to take this opportunity to thank all Members of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for their outstanding contribution to our Council’s aims, plans and goals over the 
last 12 months.  Notwithstanding the Covid 19 pandemic and the huge workload each of you 
have had in your normal daily activities for our community is commendable. 
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Committee is a non-political Member led group (rightly so) which 
has developed into a cohesive forum with the sole aim of working together to support, 
challenge and maximise the effectiveness of the Council, to listen to our partners but more 
importantly to listen to our residents. 
 
We have addressed a number of issues, some of which have been very emotive, these have 
been progressed (most to conclusion) with sensitivity by the agreed and established Chairs 
and their groups. 
 
Overview & Scrutiny is a fundamental Committee tasked with ensuring that we are all 
(Members and Officers) held accountable for our actions and that full trust can be assured to 
our Borough from all of us. 
 
We have made great progress over the last 12 months and it is my sincere wish that this 
continues in the same vein going forward.  Once again thank you for your support and 
commitment to our community and to myself as Chair. 
 
Cllr Martin McLeavy – Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

Page 40

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 3 of 12 
 

 

Year in Review: Overview and Scrutiny 2021/2022 
 
Between May 2021 and April 2022 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had met eight 
times.  Membership of the Committee was Councillors:- 
 

 Martin McLeavy (Chair); 
 Frank Cassidy (Vice Chair); 
 Derek Gawne; 
 Allison Johnston; 
 Wendy McClure; 
 William McEwan; 
 Beverly Morgan; 
 Hayley Preston; 
 Steve Robson; 
 Colin Thomson; 
 Ann Thomson; and 
 Roy Worthington. 

 
The Work Programme for 2021/2022 had been agreed by the Committee at their meetings on 
3rd June and 8th July, 2021 as follows:- 
 

 Flooding on Walney Promenade; 
 Discretionary Housing Payments;  
 Tenancy of Piel Island; and 
 Memorial Benches 

 
An additional item for consideration was agreed at the Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 3rd 
February, 2022 which involved looking into ongoing issues in the Crellin Street vicinity 
emanating from food takeaway delivery services. 
 
 
Paused Reviews 
 
The review into Street Cleanliness had been paused throughout 2020/2021 and had not yet 
resumed.  The review had been paused whilst discussions had been ongoing between 
Council Officers and FCC Environment. 
 
Ongoing Reviews 
 
The following reviews from 2020/2021 had been ongoing and had been carried forward into 
2021/2022:- 
 

 Membership of Outside Bodies; and 
 Impact of Covid-19 going Forward. 

 
Further details of each of the reviews are provided overleaf:- 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 4 of 12 
 

 

Flooding on Walney Promenade  
 

Membership of Work Group Cllrs Cassidy (Lead), Gawne, McEwan and C. Thomson 

Key Priority Place 

Review Status Paused December 2021 

 
Background 
 
The Promenade on Walney was intermittently affected by flooding when high Spring tides 
coincided with severe adverse weather conditions such as heavy rainfall and storm surges. 
Typically this occurred once or twice per year when the capacity of waste treatment storage 
arrangements was challenged by the prevailing conditions. 
 
Scope of the Review 
 
To liaise with the relevant responsible Authorities to ensure that everything possible was 
being done to address the flooding issues. 
 
Details of the Review 
 
Contact had been made with Cumbria County Council to ascertain whether their Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee had looked at this matter in the past, as flooding sat with the upper 
tier Authority. It had since been confirmed that they had not looked into this matter in the 
recent past. 
 
An Officer from the Council’s Public Protection Services represented the Council on the 
Making Space for Water Group in Cumbria. He had previously supplied some technical 
information to the Work Group. 
 
Following the request from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, arrangements had been 
made for two representatives from United Utilities to address the Committee to discuss this 
issue.  An update had been provided on the plans being made for the sewer network to 
prevent flooding on Walney Promenade as follows: 
 
It had been noted that a micro tunnel runs from North Scale to Mill Lane which was most 
likely subject to tidal infiltration as it runs under the channel.  In order to conduct investigatory 
works, with the area being a Site of Specific Scientific Interest (SSSI), permits would be 
required from Natural England and the Marine Maritime Industry.  There was an approximate 
lead time of 6-9 months for the permits to be obtained. 
 
With narrow windows of opportunity to conduct investigatory works due to tides, it was 
anticipated that the investigatory works would take approximately one month.  A Business 
Case would then need to be developed with a view to completing the works within a further 
six months (subject to permits). 
 
Overall, it was anticipated that the works could be completed within a time frame of 12-18 
months maximum.  The representatives from United Utilities had confirmed that they would 
be happy to provide regular updates to the Committee as appropriate.   
 
The Committee had welcomed the information and the offer from United Utilities to provide 
updates to the Committee in the future as the works progressed. 
 

Page 42

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 5 of 12 
 

 

 
Discretionary Housing Payments 
 

Membership of Work Group Cllrs M.  A. Thomson (Lead), McEwan and Morgan 

Key Priority People/Prosperity 

Review Status Paused December 2021 

 
Details of the review 
 
The Work Group had met on 9th November with the Revenues and Benefits Service Manager 
who had provided information to the Group regarding the number of people in receipt of 
discretionary housing and supported housing payments, as well as the number of claims and 
the number of claims refused and for what reason.  The Work Group were considering a 
‘Deep Dive’ into the support available to vulnerable residents in HMOs and supported 
housing accommodation, looking at both the needs of the residents as well as the financial 
aspect to the Council.  In November 2021, the work was paused and further discussion is 
taking place as to the scope of the review.  
 
 
Tenancy of Piel Island  
 

Membership of Work Group Cllrs McClure (Lead), Gawne, McEwan and M. A. 
Thomson 

Key Priority Place/Prosperity 

Review Status Concluded March 2022 

 
Background 
 
Barrow Borough Council are the custodian of Piel Island and until late May 2021, the 
management of Piel Island, including the running of the Ship Inn, maintaining the toilet block 
and the Island grounds was undertaken by the holders of a lease from the Council.  The 
Leaseholders had decided before the end of their lease that they wished to terminate the 
arrangement. 
 
Ensuring that Piel Island could be shown to its best advantage, the Council needed to fully 
understand its full potential for the future.  To enable to the Ship Inn to re-open after a period 
of closure and early termination of the lease had taken considerable effort from a team of 
Council Officers who had volunteered to go over to Piel Island and repaint it, organise deep 
cleaning and deal with a range of other issues.  This had been done within a couple of weeks 
to then enable the Council to show prospective interested partners around the premises. 
 
For the last season and in the light of the impact of Covid, a pilot partnership approach had 
been put in place with a provider to truly understand what the longer-term management 
arrangements might look like to make the best of Piel Island for all.  The provider was a local 
company that had experience in running pubs and they subsequently established the Piel 
Island Pub Company.  The arrangement had been that it would be from June to September 
2021 and be open book accounting to understand the cost and income from Piel Island. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been looking at the arrangements for the 
management of Piel Island as part of their Work Programme for the year.  The Work Group 
wished to ensure that any long-term future management arrangements for Piel Island would 
be considered thoroughly and in an open and transparent manner. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 6 of 12 
 

 

Scope of the Review 
 
The Work Group wished to ensure that any long-term future management arrangements for 
Piel Island would be considered thoroughly in an open and transparent manner to ensure that 
a suitable and experienced operator would be appointed. 
 
Details of the Review 
 
Members of the Work Group had visited Piel Island and had attended a number of meetings 
with the Director of People and Place during the review. 
 
The Work Group had concluded the following lessons learnt from the 2021 season:- 
 

 Piel Island was a unique place and any operator needed to appreciate the constraints 
offered by power, weather, access and its location within an area of Site of Special 
Scientific Interest; 

 Visitors to Piel Island were short stay and wanted a basic meal and drink; 

 Camping and paying a small fee for that was popular; 

 The relationship with the ferry operator and the management arrangements for Piel 
Island were really important; 

 Alternative access arrangements off the island besides the ferry needed to be in 
place; 

 More outside seating was needed to facilitate visitors; 

 The community ownership of Piel Island and its local appeal and natural habitat was 
really important; 

 There were no incidents of anti-social behaviour reported, which was contrary to 
perception; 

 Any operator needed to manage and maintain the Island and its assets to a standard 
that the Council expects; 

 All aspects of the Island except for external urgent repairs to the buildings and jetty 
maintenance would be the responsibility of the operator; 

 Emergency planning for incidents with agencies was an essential part of any future 
management arrangements; 

 There was potential for events and Piel Island is an essential element of any 
destination marketing.  Any operator would need a formal relationship with the Council 
to enable this; 

 Communications about Piel Island and whether buildings are open and food and drink 
is being served would be the responsibility of the operator; and 

 Any operator needed experience in operating a licenced premises and with access to 
staff, financial sustainability and be prepared to open for a short period of the year 
whilst retaining responsibility for the premises and the Island all year round. 

 
At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16th December, 2021 a detailed 
report had been presented from the Director of People and Place regarding the future 
management arrangements of Piel Island.  The Committee considered the report and agreed 
a number of recommendations to the Executive Committee as follows:- 
 

 Agree to the proposed management arrangements as set out in the report and 

delegate authority to the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Chair of 

Executive Committee, to undertake the procurement process and award the new 

contract; 

Page 44

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 7 of 12 
 

 

 Note their appreciation for the work that officers put into getting the Ship Inn ready to 

be re-opened this season at very short notice; 

 Note the lessons learnt from the partnership approach and thank the Piel Island Pub 

Company for their contribution; and 

 Note that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Piel Island Working Group will 

continue to receive progress updates. 

 

The Committee had welcomed the plan for the future management arrangements of Piel 

Island but the Work Group needed to understand what had happened in the past, in terms of 

the selection process for the temporary operator for the 2021 season.  A number of questions 

in that regard had been raised at the meeting which had been taken forward to a meeting of 

the Work Group in January 2022.   

 
Conclusions 
 
Following further discussions with the Director of People and Place at the Work Group 
meeting in January 2022, the Work Group had concluded that they were satisfied that due 
process had been followed to set up the partnership arrangements for the 2021 season and 
that the Officers involved had done a fantastic job in the short space of time and other 
challenges faced, including Covid, to get the Island and the Pub up and running for the start 
of the season and to make Piel Island and its facilities available as often as possible for 
visitors during the 2021 season. 
 
In respect of the long-term future management arrangements for Piel Island, it had been 
noted as per the recommendations to the Executive Committee, that an open and transparent 
procurement process had been undertaken to award the new contract and the Work Group 
had welcomed the opportunity for them to oversee the Scoring Panel for the Tender 
submissions. 
 
The Work Group has made the following recommendations to the Executive Committee in 
order to conclude the review:- 
 

 Clear, concise and agreed requirements to be set for the tenant who is selected; 

 A targeted media campaign to be established to find the most suitably qualified tenant; 

 Members of the Piel Island Scrutiny Work Group to be given the opportunity to 
oversee the scoring process; 

 Visibility to Members of profit/loss e.g. performance management information on a 
regular basis (3 times annually); 

 All Members to be kept fully updated on activities, performance and issues etc 
encountered by the Council and the Tenant at least twice annually or more frequently 
as necessary; 

 Consideration be given to a Piel Island Member Group. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 8 of 12 
 

 

Memorial Benches  
 

Membership of Work Group Cllrs Cassidy (Lead), McEwan and McClure. 

Key Priority Place 

Review Status Concluded October 2021 

 
Background  
 
The style and number of memorial benches appearing around the Borough had been raised 
as a concern.   
 
Scope of the Review 
 
The aim of the review was to ensure that some consistency could be applied to the siting and 
style of memorial benches throughout the Borough. 
 
Details of the review 
 
Following discussions with the Director of People and Place, the Work Group established that 
a set of guidelines for the installation of memorial benches within the Council Cemeteries 
existed but there was no equivalent set of guidelines for the installation of memorial benches 
on Barrow Borough Council owned land outside of Council Cemeteries.  This had resulted in 
an ad hoc approach to the siting of benches and no clear position on quality of installation 
and maintenance. 
 
A draft policy for Memorial Benches encompassing the siting on Barrow Borough Council 
owned land as well as Cemeteries had been reviewed by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at their meeting on 28th October, 2021.   
 
Conclusions 
 
The Committee had been satisfied with the Policy and had recommended that Executive 
Committee approve the policy which was approved on 10th November, 2021.   
 
 
Crellin Street 
 

Membership of Work Group Cllrs McEwan (Lead), Cassidy, Gawne, McClure and M.A. 
Thomson 

Key Priority People/Place 

Review Status Ongoing 

 
Background  
 
The Covid-19 Pandemic had seen a marked increase in the takeaway food delivery business.  
The Scrutiny Committee had been made aware of ongoing issues in the Crellin Street vicinity 
emanating from food takeaway delivery services including parking on double yellow lines, 
obstructing delivery wagons and other road users, as well as reports of residents feeling 
intimidated walking past crowds of Uber Eats Drivers.   
 
 
 

Page 46

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 9 of 12 
 

 

Scope of the Review 
 
Following the initial meeting of the Work Group, Members of the Work Group had requested 
for additional representatives to be invited to meet with them including Graham Barker (Head 
of Public Protection, Barrow Borough Council), as well as a representative from the Police 
and Cumbria County Council. 
 
Membership of Outside Bodies  
 

Membership of Work Group N/A 

Key Priority People 

Review Status Concluded May 2021 

 
Details of the review 
 
The Council allocated resource to offering representation on a significant number of outside 
bodies.  Members had stated that there could be a better understanding of the benefits of the 
Council being represented on some of these bodies.  Members had wanted to rationalise the 
list so that Member representation was meaningful and agreed that a Scrutiny Work Group 
should review this. 
 
A Work Group was never established, however a review of Council representation on outside 
bodies had been undertaken by the Corporate Support Manager and the list of Outside 
Bodies had been reduced, removing those which had not been active within the last two 
years. 
 
At full Council in September 2020 it had been agreed that Members on Outside Bodies 
should be requested to provide an annual report to Council on the work of the body and its 
contribution to the Borough and the wider area. 
 
The annual reporting process for Lead Members and Members on Outside Bodies is now 
captured by Democratic Services and reported to the Annual Council meeting.   
 
 
Impact of Covid-19 going Forward 
 

Membership of Work Group Cllrs McEwan (Lead), Cassidy, McClure and McLeavy 

Key Priority People/Place/Prosperity 

Review Status Ongoing 

 
Background 
 
The Scrutiny Committee had agreed that Covid-19 had been an unprecedented challenge to 
the Council and other organisations.  It was clear that going forward, the Council would be 
delivering a lot of its services in different ways.  The Committee had agreed that a Work 
Group should be established to review the way these changes were managed to ensure the 
impact on local people was considered and the changes were implemented and 
communicated in the best way possible. 
 
 
 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 10 of 12 
 

 

Scope of the Review 
 
It was agreed that the review should include:-   
 

 Understanding the Council’s response and what had been learnt and applying that 
going forward.  Sharing best practice across the Borough was essential to ensure 
maximised benefit of initiatives; 

 Ensuring that Officers and Members were equipped to operate on-site and off-site and 
that equipment could be upgraded remotely with a minimum amount of disruption;  

 Ensuring that the Council was clear about its role and that it was transparent to other 
organisations and to residents; and 

 The impact that different ways of working by industry, retail and hospitality may have 
on the economic future of the Borough.  

 
Details of the Review 
 
In respect of the processing of grants during lockdown, the Work Group had met with the 
Director of Resources to obtain an overview of the process and to look at individual examples 
to ensure the process was being applied correctly. 
 
In respect of IT equipment, the Executive Committee had approved an IT project which would 
improve security and reliability of their systems and provide improved communications for 
Officers and Members.  The project was ongoing and would include the issue of new IT 
equipment for Members. 
 
The work group monitoring the impact of Covid-19 had focussed on the following:  

 

Issue of Focus Comments/Progress 

The latest business Grants process 
following the National Lockdown. 

The Work Group had an overview of the 
process and had looked at individual 
examples to ensure the process was 
being applied. 

Availability of Covid-19 testing in the 
Borough. 

The Work Group had been satisfied that 
there was sufficient provision. 

Support provided by the Council for 
premises in the area to prepare them 
for re-opening. 

Information had been gathered from 
Public Protection. 

Monitoring the provision of and the 
activities of the Covid Marshalls. 

Information had been gathered from 
Public Protection. 

Monitoring published Covid-19 related 
clinical data including:- case numbers, 
hospital admissions and fatalities in the 
area. 

The Work Group had received regular 
updates from Graham Barker, Head of 
Public Protection and Colin Cox, 
Director of Public Health for Cumbria 
County Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 11 of 12 
 

 

 
Looking Ahead to 2022/2023 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are responsible for setting their own Work 
Programme.  They are expected to review at least one major policy issue during the 
municipal year and must give serious consideration to the number of issues to be reviewed 
during the year, to ensure that they are able to allocate resources sufficient to facilitate a 
thorough review of the issues selected. 
 
An efficient and effective Overview and Scrutiny Work Planning process ensures that 
maximum value can be made of the Council’s resources and that the outcome of the work will 
be closely linked to the Council Plan priorities.  To that end the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee have the following procedure for work programming:- 
 

 Annual public consultation exercise to bring forward potential items for consideration; 
 Preliminary prioritisation of submissions conducted by the Chair and Vice Chair and 

the Council’s Senior Management Team using the agreed Work Planning Aid (see 
page 12); 

 A Work Planning Workshop involving the Committee members to allow discussion of 
the topics in an informal setting; and 

 The proposed Work Programme to be agreed by the Committee. 
 
At its meeting on 24th March 2022, Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
identified the following items for the Work Programme for 2022/2023:- 
 

 X 
 Y 
 Z 

 
It is important that all of the reviews are concluded during the municipal year as under the 
proposals for Local Government Reorganisation, Barrow Borough Council will be abolished 
come 31st March, 2023. 
 
The Committee may have the capacity to undertake additional reviews throughout the year 
should the need arise.  Any additional items for consideration will be considered in 
conjunction with the Work Planning Aid (see page 12) agreed by the Committee at their 
meeting on 16th December, 2021. 
 
 
Scrutiny Contact Details 
 
Paula Westwood 
Scrutiny and Democratic Services Team Leader 
Tel:- 01229 876322 
E-mail:- pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk   
 
Further information on the Scrutiny function including agendas, minutes and Councillor details 
can be found on the Council’s website:- www.barrowbc.gov.uk   
 

 

 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1

tel:-
mailto:pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

 

 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-2022                                                  Page 12 of 12 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	OSC03FEB22 - FINAL

	8 Work Programme Update
	9 Final Report of the Scrutiny Work Group - Piel Island
	10 Work Programme for 2022/2023
	Appendix 1 - Consultation Responses
	Appendix 2 - Work Planning Aid

	11 Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2021/2022
	Appendix 1 - Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report - 2021/2022


